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SUSAN MONTEE, CPA 
Missouri State Auditor 

March 9, 2007 

Fiscal Period: One Year Ended August 31 , 2005 )(. 
One Year Ended August 31 , 2006 V 

Dear Ms. Waller: 

In accordance with Section 105.145, RSMo, we acknowledge receipt of the financial 
report of your political subdivision for the above-described fiscal period. 

Thank you for your cooperation in sending this information. 

Sincerely, 

SUSAN MONTEE, CPA 
STATE AUDITOR 

~~ 
Judy Buerky 
Local Government Analyst 

P.O. Box 869 • Jefferson City, MO 65102 • (573) 75 1-4213 • FAX (573) 75 1-7984 
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Financial Statement Summary 
For the Year Ended 

Total All 
Funds 

General 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Beginning Balance $ $ $ $ $ ------ ------ ------ ------ ------
Total Receipts 
Total Disbursements 

Ending Balance $ $ $ $ $ 
====== ====== ====== ====== ====== 
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City of .'A.rno{d 
Mark Powell, Mayor 

January 25, 2007 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Arnold: 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Arnold, Missouri (the City) for the 
fiscal year ended August 31, 2006, is hereby submitted. This report consists of management's 
representations concerning the finances of the City of Arnold. Consequently, management 
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented 
in this report based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for 
this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the 
objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are 
free of any material misstatements. 

The City of Arnold's financial statements were audited by Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP. 
The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the City for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 2006, are free of material 
misstatement. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Arnold 's financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2006, are fairly presented in conformity with 
GAAP. The independent auditors ' report is presented as the first component of the financial 
section of this report. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The City of Arnold's MD&A can be found immediately following the report 
of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the City 

The City of Arnold, incorporated in 1972, is located on the eastern border of the State of 
Missouri, south of the Meramec River at its confluence with the Mississippi River. The central 
business district of the City of St. Louis is about 17 miles to the north. Interstate Highway 55, 
U.S. Highway 61-67, and State Highways 141 and 231 provide access to St. Louis City and St. 
Louis County. 

The City of Arnold has operated under the mayor-council-city administrator form of government 
since 1972. Policy making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting 
of the mayor and eight council members. The governing council is responsible for, among other 
things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the city 
administrator, police chief, and city attorney. The city administrator is responsible for carrying 
out the policies and ordinances of the governing council and for overseeing the day-to-day 
operations of the City. The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve 

City Hall 
2101 Jeffco Blvd. 
Arnold, MO 63010 

636/296-2100 

Parks and fecreation 
1695 Missouri State Rd. 

Arnold, MO 63010 
636/282-2380 

Public Works 
2912 Arnold Tenbrook 

Arnold, MO 63010 
636/282-2386 



two-year staggered terms, with four council members elected every year. The mayor is elected to 
serve a four-year term. 

The City of Arnold provides a range of services, including police protection; the construction and 
maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; and recreational activities and cultural 
events. Trash, sewer, and storm water system services are provided through the City. The City's 
recreation center operates as a department of the City, but is reported as a separate governmental 
fund. The sewer and storm water system services are reported separately as proprietary funds in 
the City's financial statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Arnold's financial planning and 
control. All departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriations to the city 
administrator and finance director. These requests are then used as a starting point for developing 
a proposed budget. The city administrator and finance director present this proposed budget to 
the city council for review prior in July. The council is required to hold a public hearing on the 
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget prior to September 1. The appropriated budget is 
prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police). The city 
administrator has the authority to make transfers of appropriations between line items within 
individual departments. Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require 
approval of the city council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each 
individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the 
General Fund, this comparison is presented as part of the financial statements for the 
governmental funds . 

Local economy 

The economic condition and outlook of the City of Arnold has been stable in recent years. The 
current year real estate tax base showed growth of 3% above last year's levels. The City's 
housing stock, geographic location, and variety of services have kept real estate marketable. 
Commercial vacancies remain modest while the potential for further retail and industrial 
development appears highly favorable within the next five years. 

During the past ten years, the unemployment rate for Jefferson County rose from an initial low of 
1.9% (1999) to a decade high of 5.6% (2004), only to descend once more to the current rate of 
4.4%. Unemployment is expected to remain fairly stable. In conjunction with local Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) projects that are in process, a number of new retail sales and service 
establishments will open for business, bringing several hundreds jobs to the City over the next 
few years. 

The City' s tax structure relies primarily on sales taxes and utility taxes. Utility tax receipts are 
likely to continue to increase at a modest rate. As was the case in fiscal year 2005, general sales 
tax receipts increased in fiscal year 2006. Due to level retail sales, sales tax receipts are 
anticipated to remain stable or decrease slightly until the new TIF projects are in place. Little to 
no growth in sales tax has been a regional trend, and the City has demonstrated its ability to 
compress government expenditures to accommodate a tight economy or temporary downturn in 
revenue. It is anticipated this trait will continue. 

The City continues to evaluate the City's transportation system. Several major road and bridge 
projects are currently under construction or were completed this year. Partial funding for these 
projects will come from Federal Surface Transportation Programs (STP) and Federal Congestion 
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Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) programs with the balance being funded through the 
Jefferson County Capital Improvement Tax. 

Long-term financial planning 

The City desires to plan for the success of Arnold for decades to come. To encourage growth and 
stability, the City has actively sought out and supported commercial development. Two TIP 
development projects have been approved by the city council and are currently under 
construction, the "Triangle" redevelopment project and the "Arnold Crossroads" redevelopment 
project. 

The Triangle redevelopment area is approximately 40 acres in size, located in the southwest 
quadrant of Interstate 55 and Highway 141. The Arnold TIP Commission was established to 
coordinate, along with developer THF Realty, the development of a quality 225,000 square-foot 
retail shopping center on the property, anchored by a Lowe's Home Improvement Warehouse and 
a Dierberg's supermarket. Store openings are anticipated to begin in early 2008. 

The Arnold Crossroads redevelopment area will include the revitalization and modification of an 
existing shopping center located in the heart of Arnold. This project, led by Jones Realty, 
includes plans for a new Drury Hotel with meeting and banquet facilities , new buildings for 
existing restaurants, new retail stores, and new landscaping and beautification efforts. 

Major initiatives 

Fiscal year 2006 marked the first full year of operation for the City's 55,000-square-foot Arnold 
Recreation Center. The state-of-the-art facility boasts an indoor and outdoor water park and pool, 
a fitness center complete with the newest equipment, a walking/running track and a huge 
recreation room. Other amenities include party room rentals, fitness/recreation classes and 
programs, and on-site childcare. The center also works with the Mid East Area Agency on Aging 
(MEAAA) to provide services to area senior citizens including a daily meal program, activities, 
and informational programs. 

In 2005 and 2006, with voter-approval, the City issued $9 million of sewer revenue bonds in 
conjunction with the Missouri State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) program. Bond proceeds are 
being used to complete the "MSD Tunnel Project". This project encompasses required 
improvements to the sewer system that allow the City to connect to a newly constructed tunnel 
gravity sewer that feeds into a new wastewater treatment plant operated by the St. Louis-based 
Metropolitan Sewer District (MSD). Any remaining proceeds will be used to finance future 
capital improvement needs. 

In 2006, in response to new, stricter Federal Envirom11ental Protection Agency water quality 
regulations, the City began start-up operations for the implementation of a new storm water utility 
system. In previous years, the City conducted a series of public engagement and communications 
meetings to get community input on how to address chronic storm water problems such as 
flooding, severe soil erosion, infrastructure improvements, and creek and stream maintenance. 
Professional consultants were engaged to develop a storm water master plan, create a rationale for 
a fee rate structure, and identify short- and long-term capital project needs. A new storm water 
department has been created to address federal requirements, planning and engineering, code 
enforcement, routine maintenance, street sweeping, and capital construction. Funding for this 
new enterprise system will come primarily from user fees charged to commercial and residential 
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customers based upon the quantity of impervious land surface. The estimated annual expenditure 
budget for the new storm water utility is $500,000. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Arnold for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 2005. This is the 17th 

consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program' s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated 
services of the entire staff of the finance department. We would like to express our appreciation 
to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. 
Credit also must be given to the mayor and the governing council for their unfailing support for 
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Arnold' s 
finances. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ma hew Unrein 
City Administrator Finance Director 
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Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

November 29, 2006 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF 
ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) as of and for the year ended August 31 , 2006, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea­
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit proce­
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City' s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo­
sures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the re­
spective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of August 31 , 2006, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in con­
formity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 29, 
2006 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its com­
pliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial report-

0 16100 Chesterfield Parkway West, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
0 1000 Washington Square, P.O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457, 636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448 

www.hbclp.com P-<?.~~.~ (~; 0,,, Member: Polaris International with Firms in Princ ipal U.S . and International C ities 



ing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accor­
dance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our au­
dit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and the required supplemental information, as listed in the 
table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary informa­
tion required by U.S generally accepted accounting principles. We have applied certain limited proce­
dures, which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and ex­
press no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collec­
tively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The other supplemental information, as listed in 
the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. This supplemental information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements take as a whole. 

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and, there­
fore, express no opinion thereon. 

~~, ~ C4-f1fr uP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

As management of the City of Arnold, Missouri (the City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 2006. Please read this narra­
tive in conjunction with the letter of transmittal, the basic financial statements, and the accompanying notes to the financial 
statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $83,692,338 (net assets). 
Of this amount, $6,980,752 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

• Governmental activities and business-type activities had net assets of$68,529,372 and $15,162,966, respectively, at 
fiscal year-end. 

• The City's total net assets increased by $894,325 during the fiscal year, with the combined governmental funds de­
creasing by $445,697 and the combined proprietary funds increasing by $1,340,022. As of the close of the current 
fisca l year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5,409,041, a decrease of 
$1,083,920 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total amount, $524,049 is available for spending at the gov­
ernment's discretion (unreserved, undesignatedfund balance). 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $384,343 or 
3% of total General Fund expenditures. 

• The City's total debt, including compensated absences, increased by $8,781,639 during the current fiscal year to a 
total of$28,134,845. The key factor in this increase was the issuance of$9,000,000 in revenue bonds for the Sewer 
Fund. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic 
financial statements are comprised of three components: I) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial state­
ments, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required and additional supplemental information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Table A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City government 
they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management's discussion 
and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with broad information about the City's finances, 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The two government-wide statements, Statement of Net Assets and 
Statement of Activities, report the City's net assets and how they have changed. In the government-wide statements, a dis­
tinction is made between governmental-type activities and business-type activities. Governmental-type activities are those 
normally associated with the operation of a government such as health, highways, public safety, and parks. Business-type 
activities are those activities of the government that are designed to be self-supporting. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the differences between the 
two reported as net assets. Increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether or not the fman­
cial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. The statement of net assets also provides information on unrestricted 
and restricted net assets and net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

The Statement of Activities presents information on how the City' s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. 
All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are purported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods. To assess the overall health of the City you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors 
such as changes in the City's property tax base or the condition of the City's roadway network. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

The Governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety {police, courts, justice services), highways 
and streets, health, parks and recreation (including the Recreation Center) as well as interest and fiscal charges. The busi­
ness-type activities include the sewer and storm water system services provided by the City. 

Scope 

Required financial statements 

Accounting basis and measurement 

foc us 

Type of asset/l iabi lity infonnation 

Type of inflow/out flow information 

Table A- I 

Major Features of City of Arnold's Government-wide 
and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide Statements Government Funds 

Entire City government (except fiduc iary The activities of the City that are 

funds) and the City's component unit s 

• Statement o f net assets 

• Statement o f act ivit ies 

Accrual accounting and economic 

resources focus 

not proprietary or ficuciary, such 

as po lice, fire, and parks and 
recreat ion 

• Balance sheet 

• Statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and charges in fund 
balances 

Modi fied accrual accounting and 

current financial resources focus 

All assets and liabilit ies, 00th financial Only assets expected to be used up 

and capital, and sho11-tenn and long-tenn and liabilities that come due during 

the year or soon thereafter; no 

capital assets included 

All revenues and expenses during year, Revenues for which cash is 

Fund Statements 

Proprietary Funds 

Activities the City operates similar 
to private businesses: sewer 

system and stonn water system 

* Statement of net assets 

* Statement of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net assets 

Accrual accounting and economic 

resources foc us 

All assets and liabilities, 00th 

financial and capital, and shon­

tenn and long-tenn 

All revenues and expenses during 

regardless of when cash is received or 

paid 

received during or soon after the year, regardless of when cash is 
end of the year; expenditures when received or paid 

goods or services have been 
received and payment is due 

during 1he year or soon therea ft er 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fiduciary Funds 

Instances in which the City is the trustee 

or agent for someone else's resources, 
such as the retirement plan fo r City 
employees 

* Statement of fiduciary net assets 

* Statement of changes in fiduciary net 
assets 

Accrual accounting and economic 

resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, both shon-tenn 

and long-tenn; the City's funds do not 
current ly contain capital ass s, 
alt hough they can 

All revenues and expenses during year, 

regardless of when cash is rec-eived or 
paid 

A fund is an accounting device that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular pur­
poses. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary 
funds , and fiduciary funds . 

Governmental funds . Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, govern­
mental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such info1mation may be useful in evaluating a government 's 
near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental fimds with similar information presented for governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govern­
ment's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to faci litate this comparison between govern­
mental funds and governmental activities. 

The City adopts annual appropriated budgets for its General and Recreation Center Funds. Budgetary comparison statements 
have been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________ ________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 18 of this report. 

Proprietary funds . Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprie­
tary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long- and short-term financial information, only with more 
detail. The City maintains two Enterprise Funds, which are used to report the same functions presented as business-type ac­
tivities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses Enterprise Funds to account for its sewer and storm water 
utility systems. The City does not utilize the second type of proprietary fund, the Internal Service Fund. These funds are an 
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the entity's various functions and departments. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 21 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds. The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its police employees' pension plan. It is responsible for ensuring 
that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the City's fiduciary activities are reported 
in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities 
from the City's government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 and 23 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the fmancial statements can be found 
pages 24 through 46 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplemental information concerning budgetary presentations of budget to actual amounts. Required supplemental 
information can be found on pages 47 through 50 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the 
case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $83,692,338 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. (See 
Table A-2.) 

C urrent and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long-term debt 
outsta ndin g 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets in vested in 

capital assets, net of 
related debt 

Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

$ 

Table A-2 
City of Arnold's Net Assets as of August 31, 2005 and 2006 

(In thousands of dollars) 

Governmental 

Activities 

2005 

15 ,612 
77,336 
92,948 

17,278 
6,695 

23 ,973 

60,861 

2 ,060 
6,054 

2006 

20,678 
77,806 
98 ,484 

16 ,960 
12 ,995 
29,955 

61 ,593 

1,390 
5,546 

Business-type 

A cli vities 

2005 

2,836 
13 ,500 
16,336 

2 ,075 
438 

2 ,513 

11 ,425 

805 
1,593 

2006 

12,497 
14 ,982 
27 ,479 

11 , 175 
1,141 

12 ,316 

12 ,886 

842 
1,435 

2005 

18,448 

90 ,836 
109 ,284 

19,353 
7,133 

26 ,486 

72 ,286 

2,865 
7,647 

$ 68,975 68,529 I 3 ,823 15 , 163 82 ,798 

Total 

2006 

33 ,175 
92 ,788 

125,963 

28,135 
14, 136 
42 ,27 1 

74,479 

2,232 
6,981 

83,692 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

_________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets, 89%, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land buildings, machin­
ery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net assets, 3%, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they 
may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets totaling $6,980,752 may be used to meet the City's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for 
the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. This was also true for the 
prior fiscal year. 

Table A-3 
Statement of Activities for the Years Ended August 31, 2005 and 2006 

(In thousands of dollars) 

Governmental Business-type Percentage 
Activities Activities Total Change 

2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 - 2006 
Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 1,726 2,662 I, 153 2,554 2,879 5,216 81.17 % 
Operating grants 1,005 1,139 1,005 1, 139 13.33 
Capital grants 4,928 78 1 4,928 78 1 (84.15) 

General revenues: 

Taxes 9,474 9,793 9,474 9,793 3.37 

Investment income 388 243 103 345 491 588 19.76 

Miscellaneous 128 364 128 364 184.38 

Total revenues 17,649 14,982 1,256 2,899 18,905 17,88 1 (5.42) 

Expenses 
General govemment 1,935 3,135 1,935 3, 135 62.02 

Public safety 4,824 5, 141 4,824 5, 141 6.57 
Public works 1,049 2,026 1,049 2,026 93.14 

Highways and streets 2,276 1,406 2,276 1,406 (38 .22) 

Parks and recreation 762 1,889 762 1,889 147.90 

Health and sanitation 884 826 884 826 (6.56) 

Sewer system 1,48 1 1,870 1,481 1,870 262.66 

Stonn water system 38 38 100.00 

Interest on long-tenn debt 749 656 749 656 ( 12.42) 

Total expenses 12,479 15,079 1,481 1,908 13,960 16,987 21.68 

Excess ( deficiency) before 

transfers 5,170 (97) (225) 99 1 4,945 894 (81.92) 

Transfers ( 105) (349) 105 349 

Increase (decrease) 
in net asstcs 5,065 (446) (120) 1,340 4,945 894 (81.92) 

Net assets - September I 63 ,9 10 68,975 13 ,943 13 ,823 77,853 82,798 6.35 

Net assets - August 3 I $ 68,975 68,529 13,823 15,163 82,798 83,692 1.08 % 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 -------------------------
Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by $445,697. Key elements of this net 
decrease are as follows: 

• Despite a decrease in the property tax rate from $0.45 16 per $100 of assessed valuation in 2005 to $0.4379 per $100 
of assessed valuation in 2006, property tax revenues increased by $86,493 (10%) due to an increase in the assessed 
valuation of property located within the City. 

• Charges in services revenue increased significantly due to the fust full year of operation for the recreation center, 
which reported $834,055 in service revenues. A correlating increase of$1 ,159,722 is reflected in the operating ex­
penditures for park and recreation. 

• Grant revenues decreased markedly as the prior year included $3 million worth of state funding for transportation 
projects that was not repeated in the current year. Total expenditures in the combined public works and highways 
and streets departments decreased accordingly. 

• Interest income decreased by $1 45,151 during the current year. The primary cause of this decline was due to higher 
than normal investment income in the prior year due to earnings on invested bond proceeds prior to their disburse­
ment for construction costs. 

• Expenditures for personnel costs in the General Fund increased by $361,023 (6%) during the current year. This in­
crease is attributable to the addition of new personnel, increased health insurance premium rates, and increased costs 
for retirement and pension contributions made by the City on behalf of employees. 

Figure A-1 

Sources of Revenue - Governmental Funds 

Gross utility tax 

Miscellaneous taxes 14% 
5% 

Special 
assessments 

Licenses and 
permits 

3% 

Fines and court cost 
7% 

Intergovern­
mental 

2% 

Charges for 
services 

6% 
~ -------- Interest 2% 

EJ Property tax 

■ Sales tax 

□ Miscellaneous taxes 

□ Gross utility tax 

■ Special assessments 

□ Licenses and permits 

■ Fines and court cost 

□ Intergovernmental 

■ Charges for services 

■ Interest 

□ Miscellaneous revenue 

- - ----=::==~--------_______ Miscellaneous 
revenue 

Property tax 6% 3% 

Miscellaneous revenue does not include unusual items such as loan and bond proceeds. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 -----------------------

Figure A-2 

Expenditures by Function - Governmental Funds 

General 
Debt Service Government 

11% 14% 

Capital 
Expenditures □ General Government 

11% ■ Public Safety 

□ Public Works 
Health and 

□ Highways and Streets 
Sanitation 

■ Parks and Recreation 
5% Public Safety □ Health and Sanitation 

29% ■ Capital Expenditures 

Parks and □ Debt Service 

Recreation 
12% 

Highways and Public Works 
Streets 12% 

6% 

Business-type activities. Business activities increased the City's net assets by $1,340,022. Key elements of this increase are 
as follows: 

• Charges for sewer services increased by $1,339,481 during the current year. This amount is more than double the 
prior year revenue figure due to a sewer fee rate increase introduced in December 2005. For the first time in over 25 
years, the City raised the monthly rate for residential sewer service from $8.50 per month to $19.50. Based on a rate 
study, the increased user fee was necessary to provide for the operational needs of the sewer system and to fund ma­
jor capital improvements for the current and future years. 

• The current year includes the introduction of the City's new storm water utility system. Billings for the new system 
began in August 2006, resulting in $61,267 in charges for service revenues. Operating expenses of $37,899 were 
also incurred in the current year. 

• Investment income increased by $241,405 due to higher investment account balances as a result of the additional 
sewer user fee revenue and earnings on revenue bond proceeds from the City's two new sewer revenue bond issues. 

• Cost of sewer service expenses increased by 18%; principally from an $87,238 increase in personnel costs. Person­
nel costs rose due to scheduled salary increases, a doubling of overtime expense from $7,321 to $15,122, increased 
premiums for health insurance benefits, increased retirement contributions expense, and a $9,721 accrual for unused 
vacation and sick time costs. Also a notable factor was a $35,684 (52%) increase in operating supplies expense. 

• Due to the issuance of $9,000,000 in sewer revenue bonds, interest expense increased by 273%. 

Table A-4 presents the cost of each of the City's six governmental functions - general government, public safety (police, 
courts, and justice services), public works, highways and streets, parks and recreation (parks and recreation center) and health 
and sanitation - as well as each function's net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). 
The net cost shows the financia l burden that was placed on the City 's taxpayers by each of these functions. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

• The cost of all governmental activities this year was $15,078,853 . 
• However, the amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through City taxes was $10.5 million. Some of the 

costs were paid by: 
Those who directly benefited from the programs, or 
Other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions. 

Table A-4 
Net Cost of City of Arnold's Governmental Activities 

(In thousands of dollars) 

Percentage Percentage 
Total Cost Of Services Change Net Cost Of Services Change 

2005 2006 2005 - 2006 2005 2006 2005 - 2006 

General government $ 1,935 $ 3,135 62.02 % $ 1,240 $ 2,692 117.10 % 
Public safety 4,824 5, 141 6.57 3,561 3,686 3.51 
Public works 1,049 2,026 93. 14 409 1,551 279.22 
Highways and streets 2,276 1,406 (38.22) (2,661) 133 105.00 
Parks and recreation 762 1,889 147.90 653 968 48.24 
Health and sanitation 884 826 (6.56) 869 8 11 (6.67) 
Interest on long-tenn debt 749 656 ( 12.42) 749 656 (12.42) 

Total $ 12,479 $ 15 ,079 20.84 % $ 4,820 $ 10,497 11 7.78 % 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal require­
ments. 

Govenimental funds . The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particu­
lar, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end 
of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's General Fund reported an ending fund balance of $4,0 19,335. Approxi­
mately 61 % of this total amount, or $2,468,163, constitutes legally unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending 
at the City's discretion. Of this unreserved fund balance, the city council has designated 1) $1,050,149 for the construction of 
sewer subdistricts, 2) $662,183 for street and road projects, 3) $126,415 is allocated for tourism, 4) $187,799 is set aside for 
various other projects and 5) $384,343 is the undesignated reserve not allocated by city council for other purposes. The re­
maining fund balance, or $1 ,608,446, is reserved to indicate that it is not available for spending because it has already been 
committed 1) $1,126,868 to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period and 2) $481 ,578 for prepaid expendi­
tures. 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund decreased $772,994 during the current fiscal year. Key factors in this change 
were construction costs of the City's recreation center and the City's road projects currently under construction or completed 
this fiscal year. 

The Recreation Center Fund experienced its first full year of operations in the current year. The fund is strictly dedicated to 
recreation center revenues and expenses. Revenues are generated through a ¼ cent general sales tax and user fees. The Rec­
reation Center Fund reported an ending fund balance of $1 ,389,706. Of this balance, $1,250,000 is reserved for bond escrow 
funds and $139,706 is undesignated and available for use in the operation of the recreation center. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide finan­
cial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $1,411 ,176, a decrease of $182,388. Net 
assets restricted for debt service increased marginally by $37,307. The balance of unrestricted net assets for the new Storm 
Water Fund amounted to $23 ,368 at the end of the fiscal year. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

During the year there was a $10,103,512 increase in appropriations between the original and final amended budget. The fol­
lowing are the main components of the increase: 

• $9,000,875 in appropriations for the Triangle redevelopment project. 
• $300,464 to the general and administrative department for the cost of sewer subdistrict and neighborhood improve­

ment projects. 
• $212,915 for interest expense related to a line of credit for the Triangle redevelopment project, and $19,322 in inter­

est expense for capital lease payments for police vehicles. 
• $225,385 for public works street repairs and capital projects. 
• $151 ,721 for new equipment including a brush chipper, police equipment, park fountain and gazebo, and a building 

department vehicle. 
• $40,794 for general and administrative salaries and benefits. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of August 31, 
2006, amounts to $92,788,297 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings 
and system improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges. The increase in the City's invest­
ment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 2% (a 1 % increase for governmental activities and an 11 % increase for 
business-type activities) . (See table A-5). 

For more detailed information about the City's capital assets, see Note C in the notes to the financial statements, pages 31 
through 33. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• Approximately $1,053 ,197 was expended for road and street projects. 
• Recreation center building construction expenditures of $670,624 were incurred. 
• Funds of$146,192 were allocated to the purchase of public works and highways and streets equipment. 
• The City completed the Fawn Drive and Ridgecrest Drive NID projects at a total cost of $134,945 and $306,240, re-

spectively. 
• Sewer subdistrict work in progress expenditures amounted to $343 ,220. 
• $688 ,304 was spent for the acquisition of public safety vehicles. 
• Project expenses for the MSD tunnel project in the Sewer Fund totaled $1 ,610,421. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 -------------------------

Table A-5 
City of Arnold's Capital Assets 

(Net of depreciation) 
Governmental Business-type Total 

Activities Activities CaeJtal Assets 

2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 

Land $ 27,048 ,828 27,095,487 145,118 145,11 8 27,193,946 27,240 ,605 

Buildings 16,3 18,805 16,472 ,997 49,323 46,498 16,368, 128 16,5 19,495 

Treatment 

plants 542 ,424 477,369 542,424 477,369 

Machinery and 

equipment 505,045 432,358 516,866 462,628 1,021 ,9 1 I 894,986 

Automobiles 

and trucks 321,085 800,282 321 ,085 800,282 

Infrastructure 23,0 14,540 23 ,064,179 23,014,540 23 ,064,179 

Sewer lines 11 ,756,266 11 ,399,946 11 ,756,266 11 ,399,946 

Construction in 

progress 10,128,156 9,940,263 490,189 2,45 I , I 72 10,6 18,345 12,39 1,435 

Total $ 77,336,459 77,805,566 13,500,186 14,982,731 90,836,645 92,788,297 

Long-term debt. 

At year-end the City had $27, 73 l , 160 in bonds and notes outstanding - an increase of 46% from last year - as shown in Table 
A-6. The only governmental activity debt issued in fiscal year 2006 was a $600,000 lease/purchase obligation for the acqui­
sition of vehicles. For business-type activities, $9,000,000 in revenue bonds were issued for Sewer Fund infrastructure pro­
jects, primarily for the MSD tunnel project as described in the City's Letter of Transmittal. For more detailed information 
about the City's long-term liabilities, see Note D in the notes to the financial statements, pages 34 through 38. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 10% of its total assessed valua­
tion. The current debt limitation for the City is $28,247,720. The City currently has no general obligation debt outstanding. 

Revenue bonds and 

notes (backed by specific 

tax and fee revenues) 

Governmental 

Activities 

Table A-6 
City of Arnold's Outstanding Debt 

(In thousands of dollars) 
Business-type 

Activities 

2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 

Total 

$ 16,835 16,556 2,075 I I ,175 18,9 10 

Significant Variance Between Budget And Actual 

2006 

27,73 I 

Percentage 

Change 

2005-2006 

46.6 % 

The City shares in capital improvement project (CIP) sales tax dollars generated at the County level, and these revenues are 
drawn down on a reimbursement basis only. Budgeted CIP revenues were materially more than actual project expenditures, 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

resulting in a $981,603 budget shortfall in the sales tax revenue category. Actual gross receipts taxes, based on phone, gas, 
and electric utility usage, were $279,454 higher than anticipated, which allowed for increased spending in the public safety, 
highways, and streets departments. Certain road projects utilizing state grant monies that were expected to be carried over 
from the prior year were completed in the prior year, resulting in a budget shortage in intergovernmental revenues, with a 
corresponding decrease in actual expenditures in the public works expenditure budget. Regarding the Triangle redevelop­
ment project, $9. I million worth of land and buildings budgeted for as capital outlay were subsequently deemed to be prop­
erly recorded as land held for resale, as the City transferred ownership to these assets to the project developer in December 
2006. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In October 2006, the city council approved the purchase of a golf course for $3,250,000. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

• The unemployment rate, not seasonally adjusted, for Jefferson County for August 2006 was 4.4%, which is a slight 
increase from a rate of 4.3% a year ago. This compares favorably to the state 's average unemployment rate of 4.9% 
and the national average rate of 4.7%, all rates not seasonally adjusted. 

• The Consumer Price Index indicates that inflation has increased 5.4% over the August 2006 rate for the Midwest re-
gion. Inflationary trends for the Midwest region compare favorably to national indices. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2007 fiscal year. 

The property tax rate set to support the 2007 fiscal year budget remained the same at a rate of $0.44 per $100 of assessed 
value. The local sales tax rate is anticipated to remain at 1 ¼%, with 1% allocated for General Fund operations and ¼% allo­
cated to the Recreation Center Fund. 

Sewer rates are anticipated to remain the same in the new fiscal year, at a monthly residential rate of $19.50. Storm water 
fees have been preliminarily set at $3.00 per month per equivalent residential unit. As the new storm water billing and opera­
tional system is implemented, rates will be analyzed to determine if they are appropriate to support operational and capital 
project needs. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in the 
City's finances . Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial in­
formation should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, 2101 Jeffco Blvd. , Arnold, MO 63010. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

AUGUST 31, 2006 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,422,967 1,746,817 6,169,784 

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 
Taxes 1,704,638 1,704,638 

Special assessments 1,808,032 1,808,032 

Service fees 483 ,679 483 ,679 

Intergovernmental 266,911 266,911 

Miscellaneous 632,691 632,691 

Internal balances (196,800) 196,800 

Prepaid items 481,578 120 481 ,698 

Land held for resale 9,165,567 9,165,567 

Bond issue costs 344,399 148,576 492,975 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 232,871 8,910 241 ,781 
Capital improvements sales tax receivable 461,322 461 ,322 

Investments 1,249,776 9,911 ,434 11,161 ,210 
Net pension asset 104,614 104,614 

Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 37,035 ,750 2,596,290 39,632,040 
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 40,769,816 12,386,441 53,156,257 

Total Assets 98 ,484,132 27,479,067 125 ,963,199 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 2,387,782 877,033 3,264,815 
Accrued liabilities 90,783 13,883 104,666 
Accrued interest payable 240,434 2,795 243 ,229 
Due to Fiduciary Fund 61 ,782 61 ,782 
Unearned revenue 1,048 ,220 247,737 1,295 ,957 
Short-term debt 9,165,567 9,165,567 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 601 ,481 353,833 955,314 
Due in more than one year 16,358,711 10,820,820 27,179,531 

Total Liabilities 29,954,760 12,316,101 42,270,861 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 61 ,593,458 12,886,415 74,479,873 
Restricted for debt service 1,250,000 842,007 2,092,007 
Restricted for recreation 139,706 139,706 
Unrestricted 5,546,208 1,434,544 6,980,752 

Total Net Assets $ 68 ,529,372 15,162,966 83 ,692,338 

See notes to financial statements ------ --- - ----------- ------
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Functions/Programs 
Primary Government 

Governmental Activities 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 
Health and sanitation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 
Sewer system 
Storm water 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Gross receipts taxes 
Miscellaneous taxes 

Investment income 
Gain on sale of assets 
Miscdlaneous 

Transfors 
Total General Revenues And Transfers 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, SEPTEMBER I 

NET ASSETS, AUGUST 31 

Expenses 

$ 3, 135,028 
5, 141,027 
2,025,478 
1,405,773 
1,889,036 

826,303 
656,208 

15,078,853 

1,869,840 
37,899 

1,907,739 

$ 16,986,592 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges For Grants And Grants And 
Services Contributions Contributions 

346,148 96,590 
1,379,8 I 7 43,710 32,000 

134,937 340,150 
960,017 312,632 

920,846 
14,888 

2,661,699 1,138,664 781 ,372 

2,492,669 
61 ,267 

2,553,936 

5,215 ,635 1,138,664 781,372 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

Net Revenues (Expenses) And 
Changes In Net Assets 
Primarl Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

(2,692,290) (2,692,290) 
(3,685,500) (3,685,500) 
(1,550,391) (1,550,391) 

(133,124) (133,124) 
(968,190) (968,190) 
(811,415) (8 I 1,415) 
{656,208) (656,208) 

(10,497,118) ( I 0,497, 118) 

622,829 622,829 
23,368 23,368 

646,197 646,197 

{10,497,118) 646,197 (9,850,921) 

949,500 949,500 
6,771 ,832 6,771 ,832 
2,044,454 2,044,454 

27,475 27,475 
242,701 344,263 586,964 
143,126 143,126 
221 ,895 221 ,895 

{349,562) 349,562 
10,051,421 693,825 10,745,246 

(445 ,697) 1,340,022 894,325 

68,975 ,069 13,822,944 82,798,013 

$ 68,529,372 15,162,966 83,692,338 

See notes to financial statements, _______________________________________________ _ 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes 
Special assessments 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 
Land held for resale 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Capital improvements sales tax receivable 
Investments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued interest 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 
Short-term debt 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for : 

Prepaid items 
Encumbrances 
Recreational center escrow deposit 

Unreserved: 
Designated for sewer subdistrict projects 
Designated for street projects 
Designated for road reconstruction 
Designated for drug forfeitures 
Designated for Greenway beautification 
Designated for economic development 
Designated for pride in our City 
Designated for tourism 
Undesignated - General Fund 
Undesignated - Special Revenue Fund 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities And Fund Balances 

See notes to financial statements 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

AUGUST 31, 2006 

Total 
Recreation Governmental 

General Center Funds 

$ 3,897,860 525,107 4,422,967 

1,493,540 211 ,098 1,704,638 
1,808,032 1,808,032 

266,911 266,911 
632,691 632,691 
576,200 576,200 
481 ,578 481,578 

9,165,567 9,165,567 

232,647 224 232,871 
461 ,322 461 ,322 

1,249,776 1,249,776 

$19,016,348 1,986,205 21 ,002,553 

$ 2,292,062 95,720 2,387,782 
86,781 4,002 90,783 

212,914 212,914 
560,391 274,391 834,782 

2,679,298 222,386 2,901 ,684 
9,165,567 9,165,567 

14,997,013 596,499 15,593,512 

481,578 481,578 
1,126,868 1,126,868 

1,250,000 1,250,000 

1,050,149 1,050,149 
112,183 112,183 
550,000 550,000 
40,152 40,152 
60,000 60,000 
78,581 78,581 

9,066 9,066 
126,415 126,415 
384,343 384,343 

139,706 139,706 
4,019,335 1,389,706 5,409,041 

$19,016,348 1,986,205 21 ,002,553 

----- --- ------------------------
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
____________________________ AUGUST 31, 2006 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds . The cost of the assets is $106,566,409 
and the accumulated depreciation is $28,760,843. 

Net pension assets are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
in the funds. 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures 
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long­
term liabilities at year-end consist of: 

Accrued interest payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Capital lease obligations payable outstanding 
Leasehold revenue bonds outstanding 
Unamortized bond premium 
Unamortized bond issuance cost 

Net Assets Of Governmental Activities 

$ 5,409,041 

77,805,566 

104,614 

1,853,464 

(27,520) 
(403 ,685) 
(749,910) 

(15,370,000) 
(436,597) 
344,399 

$ 68,529,372 

See notes to financial statements ________________________ _ 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

Total 
Recreation Governmental 

General Center Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 9,686,653 1,066,625 10,753 ,278 

Special assessments 428,599 428,599 

Licenses and permits 501 ,547 501,547 

Fines and court costs 1,060,849 1,060,849 
Intergovernmental 337,205 337,205 
Charges for services 102,954 834,055 937,009 
Investment income 161,805 80,896 242,701 
Miscellaneous 402,413 17,776 420,189 

Total Revenues 12,682,025 1,999,352 14,681,377 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 2,246,139 2,246,139 
Public safety 4,790,213 4,790,213 
Public works 1,997,244 1,997,244 
Highways and streets 1,046,910 1,046,910 
Parks and recreation 511 ,169 1,384,064 1,895,233 
Health and sanitation 823,634 823,634 

Capital outlay 1,784,290 18,521 1,802,811 
Debt service: 

Principal 618,743 240,000 858,743 
Interest 260,303 667,693 927,996 

Total Expenditures 14,078,645 2,310,278 16,388,923 

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1 ,396,620) (310,926) (1,707,546) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Issuance of capital lease 600,000 600,000 
Sale of capital assets 23 ,626 23 ,626 

Total Other Financing Sources 623 ,626 623,626 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (772,994) (310,926) (1,083,920) 

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 1 4,792,329 1,700,632 6,492,961 

FUND BALANCES, AUGUST 31 $ 4,019,335 1,389,706 5,409,041 

See notes to financial statements ------- -----------------
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENT AL 
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

____________ ________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlays over the capitalization threshold ($2,544,615) 
exceeded depreciation ($2,477,672) in the current period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets 
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental 
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items 
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences 
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 
Debt issued: 

Capital lease 
Repayments: 

Capital lease obligations payable 
Leasehold revenue bonds 
Amortization 

Net Adjustment 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 
Accrued interest on bonds 
Net pension asset 
Accrued compensated absences 

Change In Net Assets Of Governmental Activities 

(600,000) 

178,744 
680,000 

4,190 

7,295 
(51 ,583) 

$ (1 ,083,920) 

66,943 

402,164 

(88,449) 

262,934 

38,919 (5 ,369) 

$ (445,697) 

See notes to financial statements _________________ ___________ _ 
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., 
~ • • CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

• STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

• AUGUST 31, 2006 

• Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

• Storm Water 

• Sewer Fund Fund Total 
ASSETS • • Current Assets 

• Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,714,361 32,456 1,746,8 17 

• Due from other funds 498 ,609 498 ,609 
Service fees (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 427,986 55,693 483,679 

• Prepaid items 120 120 

• Total Current Assets 2,641 ,076 88,149 2,729,225 

• Noncurrent Asset • Capital assets: 

• Land and construction in progress 2,596,290 2,596,290 

• Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 12,386,441 12,386,441 
Total Capital Assets 14,982,731 14,982,731 

• Restricted bond cash, cash equivalents, and investments 9,920,344 9,920,344 

•· Bond issue costs 148,576 148,576 

• Total Noncurrent Assets 25 ,051 ,651 25 ,051 ,651 
Total Assets 27,692,727 88 ,149 27,780,876 • • LIABILITIES 

• Current Liabilities • Accounts payable 874,790 2,243 877,033 

• Accrued liabilities 13,883 13,883 

• Due to other funds 269,904 31 ,905 301 ,809 

• Accrued interest payable 2,795 2,795 
Unearned revenue 217,104 30,633 247,737 • Revenue bonds payable - current 353,833 353,833 

• Total Current Liabilities 1,732,309 64,781 1,797,090 

• Noncurrent Liabilities • Revenue bonds payable 9,978,813 9,978 ,813 

• Notes payable 842,007 842,007 

• Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,820,820 10,820,820 
Total Liabilities 12,553,129 64,781 12,617,910 • • NET ASSETS 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 12,886,415 12,886,415 

• Restricted for debt service 842,007 842,007 
Unrestricted 1,411 ,176 23 ,368 1,434,544 

• • Total Net Assets $ 15 ,139,598 23,368 15 ,162,966 

• • See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 

NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
____ ___ ___ ____ ___ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Charges for services 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Cost of services 
Administration 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) 
Investment income 
Interest expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBU-
TIONS 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - SEWER LINES 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, SEPTEMBER 1 

NET ASSETS, AUGUST 31 

See notes to financial statements 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Storm Water 

Sewer Fund Fund Total 

$ 2,492,669 

866,157 
138,000 
547,877 

1,552,034 

940,635 

344,263 
(317,806) 

26,457 

967,092 

349,562 

1,316,654 

13,822,944 

$ 15,139,598 

61 ,267 

31 ,899 
6,000 

37,899 

23 ,368 

23,368 

23 ,368 

23 ,368 

2,553 ,936 

898,056 
144,000 
547,877 

1,589,933 

964,003 

344,263 
(317,806) 

26,457 

990,460 

349,562 

1,340,022 

13,822,944 

15,162,966 

-----------------------
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

_____________________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

Cash flows provided by noncapital financing activities: 
Due to other funds 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Purchase of equipment 
Principal payments on notes payable 
Principal payments on bonds 
Proceeds from bonds 
Proceeds from notes payable 
Interest expense 

Net Cash Provided By Capital And Related Financing Activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Purchase of investments 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER I 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AUGUST 31 (including $8,910 for the 
Sewer Fund reported in restricted accounts) 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERA TING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenues 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

Noncash operating, financing, and investing activities: 
Contributions of capital assets from government 

Par value of debt issued 
Premium recorded 
Cost of issuance 

Net Cash Received 

See notes to financial statements 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Storm Water 

Sewer Fund Fund Total 

$ 2,23 1,647 36,207 2,267,854 
(333,782) (35,656) (369,438) 
(126,319} (126,3 19} 

1,771 ,546 551 1,772,097 

222,655 31,905 254,560 

(1,670,222) (1,670,222) 
(75,600) (75 ,600) 

(I 64,942) (164,942) 
9,073,336 9,073 ,336 

112,907 112,907 
p 15,352} (315,352} 

6,960,127 6,960,127 

344,263 344,263 
1,518,031 1,5 I 8,031 

(9,911 ,434} (9,911 ,434} 
(8 ,049,140} (8 ,049,140} 

905,188 32,456 937,644 

818,083 818,083 

$ 1,723,271 32,456 1,755 ,727 

$ 940,635 23 ,368 964,003 

547,877 547,877 

(385,399) (55 ,693) (441,092) 

532,375 2,243 534,618 
11,681 11 ,681 

124,377 30,633 155,010 
830,911 (22,8 I 7} 808,094 

$ 1,771,546 551 1,772,097 

$ 349,562 349,562 

$ 9,000,000 9,000,000 
230,722 230,722 

(157,386} (157,386} 

$ 9,073,336 9,073 ,336 

- -------- -----------------------------
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS­

PENSION TRUST FUND 
___________________________ AUGUST 31, 2006 

ASSETS 
Deposit administration contracts 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for pension benefits 

$ 4,850,422 
61 ,782 

4,912,204 

$ 4,912,204 

See notes to financial statements ________ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ ____ _ 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -

PENSION TRUST FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 ------------------

ADDITIONS 
Contributions: 

Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 

Total Contributions 

Investment income: 
Net appreciation in fair value of investments, 

interest, and dividends 
Less - Investment expense 

Net Investment Income 
Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Retirement benefits 
Return of contributions 

Total Deductions 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION 
BENEFITS, SEPTEMBER 1 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION 
BENEFITS, AUGUST 31 

See notes to financial statements 

$ 329,595 
188,791 
518,386 

400,501 
(71 ,596) 
328,905 
847,291 

1,367,512 
61 ,344 

1,428,856 

(581 ,565) 

5,493 ,769 

$ 4,912,204 

----------------------
Page 23 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies applied by the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) in the 
preparation of the accompanying financial statements are summarized below: 

1. Reporting Entity 

The financial statements of the City present the financial activities of the City and any 
component units. The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are 
based on the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) State­
ment No. 14. The City is the primary government unit. Component units are those enti­
ties which are financially accountable to the primary government, either because the City 
appoints a voting majority of the component unit's Board or because the component unit 
will provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden on the City. The City does 
not have any component units. 

2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the state­
ment of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary 
government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inter­
governmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, ser­
vices, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contribu­
tions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program reve­
nues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual Enterprise Funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements im­
posed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recog­
nized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Ex­
penditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual account­
ing. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences, claims, and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due (i.e., matured). 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current fixed period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental fund: 

General Fund -- This fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to ac­
count for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Recreation Center Fund -- This fund is used exclusively for the revenues of and ex­
pense from the operations of the recreation center. The fund includes the ¼¢ parks and 
recreation center sales tax which is deposited into this fund and used for bi-annual bond 
payments. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Sewer Fund -- This fund is used to account for operations of the City' s sewer depart­
ment. 

Storm Water Fund -- This fund is used to account for operations of the City' s storm wa­
ter department. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_________________ _;NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Pension Trust Fund -- This fund is used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity 
for the City's eligible employees. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of 
the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and Enterprise Fund, subject to this same limi­
tation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govern­
ment-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of 
taxes and other charges between the City's sewer function and various other functions of 
the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program reve­
nues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contribution; and 3) capi­
tal grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated re­
sources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation. 
The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Fund are charges for services. Operat­
ing expenses for the Enterprise Fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's pol­
icy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

For cash flow statement purposes, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. State statutes 
authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal agencies, com­
mercial paper, corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements. The Pension Trust Fund is 
also authorized to invest in corporate common or preferred stocks, bonds and mortgages, 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued) 

real or personal property, and other evidence of indebtedness or ownership, but excluding 
any debt of the City itself and individual insurance policies. Investments are stated at fair 
value. 

5. Deposit Administration Contracts 

Deposit administration contracts are pooled funds maintained by Metropolitan Life Insur­
ance Company and are carried at contract value. Contract value consist of contributions 
made under the contract plus investment income, less funds used to pay benefits, and in­
vestment expenses. 

6. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The allowance for uncollectible receivables is as follows: 

General Fund 
Enterprise Fund 

7. Due To/From Other Funds 

August 31 
2006 

$18,448 
7,055 

$25,503 

Current portions oflong-term interfund loans receivable (reported in "due from" asset 
accounts) are considered "available spendable resources" and are subject to elimination 
upon consolidation. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activi­
ties and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide statements as "in­
ternal balances". 

8. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year­
end are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items are equally offset by a fund balance re­
serve which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even 
though they are a component of net current assets. 

9. Restricted Assets 

Certain funds generated by the sewer system are classified as restricted assets on the bal­
ance sheet because their use is limited by the sewer system revenue bond ordinances. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

9. Restricted Assets (Continued) 

The bond account is used only for the payment of principal and interest on the revenue 
bonds. The depreciation and replacement account is to be expended only for repairs or 
replacements to the sewer system. The bond reserve account is to be used only to pay 
bonds at maturity or interest as it accrues when and to the extent other funds are not 
available for this purpose. 

Certain General Fund monies are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet be­
cause their use is limited by covenants of the capital lease agreement. The reserve ac­
count is to be used solely for the purpose of making lease payments on the applicable due 
dates when and to the extent other funds are not available for this purpose. The lease 
payment account is used only for the payment of the principal and interest on the lease 
obligation. 

Certain capital improvement sales tax receivables are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use and availability is limited by the sales tax agreement with 
Jefferson County. The funds are to be used for capital improvements to publicly main­
tained roads and become available upon the City's request for reimbursement of expendi­
tures on approved projects. 

10. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure ( e.g. , roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business­
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at esti­
mated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and de­
preciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. 

Depreciation is being computed on the straight-line method, using asset lives as follows: 

Assets 

Buildings, treatment plant, and other improvements 
Automotive equipment 
Machinery and equipment 
Sewer lines 
Infrastructure 

Years 

10 - 30 
3 - 5 
3 - 15 

50 
30 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

11. Accrued Vacation 

City employees generally earn vacation at the rate of .83 working days per month or 10 
days per year. Regular full-time employees having completed 6 years of service earned 
vacation leave at the rate of 1.25 days per month or 15 days per year. Regular full-time 
employees having completed 15 years of service earned vacation leave at the rate of 1.67 
working days per month or 20 days per year. Regular full-time employees who are sepa­
rated from service are compensated for vacation accrued up to the date of separation. All 
vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund fi­
nancial statements. 

12. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund finan­
cial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund 
type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds 
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance 
costs are reported and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of 
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as 
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt pro­
ceeds received, are reported as debt services expenditures. 

13. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund reports reservations of fund balance 
for amounts that are not available for subsequent year appropriations or are legally re­
stricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designated fund balances repre­
sent tentative plans for future use of financial resources. 

14. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commit­
ments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the ap­
plicable appropriation, is employed in the governmental fund types. Since appropriations 
lapse at year-end, the subsequent fiscal year's budget specifically provides for reappro­
priation of outstanding encumbrances to honor the prior commitments. Encumbrances do 
not constitute current year expenditures or liabilities. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

15. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts reported in the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 

1. Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's 
deposits may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in 
the possession of an outside party. The City's bank deposits are required by state law to 
be secured by the deposit of certain securities specified at RSMo 30.270 with the City or 
trustee institution. The value of the securities must amount to the total of the City's cash 
not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

As of August 31, 2006, the City's bank balances were entirely secured or collateraliz1~d 
with securities held by the City or by its agent in the City's name. 

2. Investments 

As of August 31, 2006, the City had the following investments: 

Less More 
Fair Than Than 

Market No One 1-5 6-10 10 Credit 
Investments Value Maturity Year Years Years Years Risk_ 

Primary Government 
Repurchase agree-
ment $ 1,014,000 1,0 14,000 AAA 

Guaranteed invest-
ment contract 9,911 ,434 9,069,427 729,100 112,907 Not rated 

Government securities: 
Federal Home 
Loan Mortgage 
Corporation 1,875,916 1,875 ,916 AAA 

Federal Home 
Loan Bank 309,166 309,166 AAA 

Money market funds 73 957 73,957 Not rated 

Grand Total 
Investments $13,184,413 ~ 3,122,082 2,062,42:Z 122,lQQ 112,90:Z 
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NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

2. Investments (Continued) 

Investments Policies 

Credit Risk is the nsk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not ful­
fill its obligations. The City does not have a written investment policy covering credit 
risk. 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk 
of adverse interest rate changes. The City does not have a written investment policy cov­
ering interest rate risk. 

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk ofloss attributed to the magnitude of the City's 
investment in a single issuer. The City does not have a written investment policy cover­
ing concentration of credit risk. 

NOTE C-CAPITAL ASSETS 

The City has reported all capital assets including infrastructure in the government-wide statement of net 
assets. 

Capital asset activity was as follows: 
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

For The Year Ended August 31~ 2006 
Balance Deletions Balance 

August 31 And August 31 
2005 Additions Transfers 2006 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $27,048,828 46,659 27,095,487 
Construction in progress 10,128,156 1,099,472 1,287,365 9,940,263 

Total Capital Assets Not 
Being Depreciated 37,176,984 1,146,131 1.287,365 37,035,750 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and other improvements 17,763,567 747,213 18,510,780 
Automotive equipment 1,875,366 759,239 905,709 1,728,896 
Machinery and equipment 1,522,098 140,122 27,989 1,634,231 
Infrastructure 46,215,313 1,441,439 47,656,752 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 67,376,344 3,088,013 933,698 69,530,659 

Less - Accumulated depreciation for: 
Building and other improvements 1,444,762 593,021 2,037,783 
Automotive equipment 1,554,281 280,042 905,709 928,614 
Machinery and equipment 1,017,053 212,809 27,989 1,201,873 
Infrastructure 23,200,773 1,391,800 24,592,573 

Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 27,216,869 2,477,672 933,698 28,760,843 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 40,159,475 610,341 40,769,816 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $77,336,459 1,7561472 1!287!365 77!805!566 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE C-CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

For The Year Ended August 31~ 2006 
Balance Deletions Balance 

August 31 And August31 
2005 Additions Transfers 2006 

Business-type Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 145,118 145,11 8 
Construction in progress 490,189 1,960,983 - 2,451,172 --

Total Capital Assets Not 
Being Depreciated 635,307 1,960,983 - 2,596,290 --

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 56,484 56,484 
Treatment plants 2,168,329 2,168,329 
Machinery and equipment 1,082,784 58,802 1,1 41 ,586 
Sewer lines 17,816,007 - 17,816,007 --

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 21,123,604 58,802 21 ,182,406 

Less - Accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 7,161 2,825 9,986 
Treatment plants 1,625 ,905 65,055 1,690,960 
Machinery and equipment 565,918 113,040 678,958 
Sewer lines 6,059,741 356,320 6,416,061 

Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 8,258,725 537,240 8,795,965 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 12,864,879 (478,438) 12,386,441 

Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $13,500.186 1,482.545 - 14,982,731 --

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 
Health and sanitation 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 

$ 649,276 
301 ,757 

31 ,348 
1,455,813 

36,421 
3 057 

$2,477,672 

$537,240 
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Changes in Long-term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity was as follows: 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2006 

Governmental activities: 
Capital lease obligations 
Leasehold revenue bonds 
Plus - Premium 
Compensated absences 

Total Governmen­
tal Activities 

Business-type activities: 
Revenue bonds payable 
Less - Discounts 
Plus - Premiums 
Notes payable 

Balance 
August 31 

2005 Additions 

$ 328,654 600,000 
16,050,000 

456,442 
442,604 49,602 

$17,277,700 649,602 

$1,285,775 9,000,000 
(14,969) 

230,722 
804,700 112,907 

Balance 
August 31 

Reductions 2006 

178,744 
680,000 

19,845 
88,521 

967,110 

164,942 
(1,828) 
5,768 

75,600 

749,910 
15,370,000 

436,597 
403,685 

16,960,192 

10,120,833 
(13,141) 
224,954 
842,007 

Amounts 
Due 

Within 
One Year 

245,744 
275,000 

80,737 

601,481 

353,833 

Total Business­
type Activities $2,075,506 9,343.629 244.482 11,174,653 353,833 

Compensated absences is generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

Leasehold Revenue Bonds 

In May 2003, the City issued $16,000,000 in leasehold revenue bonds (Series 2003) which represent 
proportionate interest in base rentals to be paid by the City pursuant to an annually renewable 
lease/purchase agreement dated May 1, 2003 between the City and UMB Bank, N.A. Company of Mis­
souri (the trustee/lessor). The trustee has agreed to execute and deliver the bonds pursuant to a declara­
tion and indenture of trust to finance the City' s acquisition and construction of the recreation center. 
The base rentals constitute rent for the facility pursuant to the lease. The leasehold revenue bonds bear 
interest ranging from 2% to 5%. 

Leasehold revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

For The Years 
Ended August 31 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

2012 - 2016 
2017 - 2021 
2022 - 2026 

2027 

Total 

Capital Lease Obligations 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

$ 275,000 660,489 935,489 
305,000 654,989 959,989 
335,000 648,508 983,508 
365,000 640,551 1,005,551 
400,000 630,514 1,030,514 

2,610,000 2,944,728 5,554,728 
3,925 ,000 2,344,760 6,269,760 
5,745,000 1,207,188 6,952,188 
1,410,000 67,688 1,477,688 

$15,370,000 2,722,415 25 ,162,415 

During 2005, the City entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of equipment 
and vehicles. 

During 2006, the City entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of vehicles. 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Assets: 
Automotive equipment 
Machinery and equipment 

Less - Accumulated depreciation 

Governmental 
Activities 
August 31 

2006 

$ 876,717 
198,007 

1,074,724 
259,187 

$ 815,537 

The future minimum capital lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease pay­
ments as of August 31, 2006 were as follows: 
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NOTED - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

For The Years 
Ended August 31 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 
Less - Amount representing interest 

Present Value Of Minimum Lease Payments 

Revenue Bonds Payable 

Governmental Activities 
Equipment 

And Vehicles Vehicles Tota\ 

$106,934 
106,934 
53,467 

267,335 
11,535 

$255,800 

162,003 
162,003 
162,003 
40,501 

526,510 
32,400 

494,110 

268,937 
268,937 
215,470 
40,501 

793,845 
43,935 

749,910 

The City issues bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to 
pay debt services. The original amount outstanding at the end of the current fiscal year related to bonds 
issued in prior years was $10,120,833. Revenue bonds outstanding at year-end are as follows: 

Purpose 

Sewerage system - Series 1992 
Sewerage system - Series 1993 
Sewerage system - Series 2005 
Sewerage system - Series 2006 

Interest Rate 

4.25 - 6.55% 
3.40 - 5.40 
3.25 - 5.25 
3.60 - 5.25 

Amount 

$ 591,250 
582,917 

6,090,833 
2,855,833 

$10,120,833 

The revenue bonds dated June 1, 1992 maturing after January 1, 2002 may be called for redemption and 
payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2002, 
at redemption prices set forth below (expressed as percentages of principal amount) plus accrued interest 
thereon to the date of redemption: 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2002 and December 1, 2002 
June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2005 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Price 

102% 
101 
100 

The revenue bonds dated June 1, 1993 maturing after January 1, 2005 may be called for redemption and 
payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2005, 
at redemption prices set forth below ( expressed as percentages of principal amount) plus accrued interest 
thereon to the date of redemption: 
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NOTED - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2005 and December 1, 2005 
June 1, 2005 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Price 

102% 
101 
100 

The revenue bonds dated November 1, 2005 maturing on July 1, 2016; July 1, 2017; July 2, 2021; and 
thereafter may be called for redemption and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 
and December 1 commencing December 1, 2015, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal 
amount plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. 

The revenue bonds dated April 2006 maturing on July 1, 2020 and thereafter may be called for redemp­
tion and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing 
June 1, 2016, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest thereon to 
the date of redemption. 

The bond ordinances required that the City establish rates and charges for its sewer services, such that 
the revenues derived from the sewage system are sufficient to provide for the payment of principal and 
interest on the revenue bonds and for the operation and maintenance of the sewage system. 

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

For The Years 
Ended August 31 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

2012 - 2016 
2017 - 2021 
2022 - 2026 

Total 

Notes Payable 

SRF - 1992, no interest 
SRF - 1993, no interest 
SRF - 2005, no interest 
SRF - 2006, no interest 

Business-type Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

$ 353,833 
479,000 
492,000 
516,000 
530,000 

2,445,000 
2,385,000 
2,920,000 

$10,120.833 

494,739 
452,404 
431 ,856 
410,411 
387,965 

1,573,254 
1,054,426 

421,1 88 

5,226.243 

848,572 
931 ,404 
923,856 
926,411 
917,965 

4,018,254 
3,439,426 
3,341,188 

15,347.076 

August 31 
2006 

$317,500 
411 ,600 

75,874 
37,033 

$842,007 

Page 37 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------

NOTED - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

In conjunction with the bonds dated June 1, 1992, a reserve account has been established with a no­
interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of Missouri. 
When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 50% of the out­
standing principal amount of such bonds. The reserve account is held in trust. As the principal amount 
of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve account will be reduced such that the reserve 
account will equal 50% of the remaining principal balance of such bonds. 

In conjunction with the bonds dated August 1, 1993; November 1, 2005; and April 1, 2006, reserve ac­
counts have been established with a no-interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and match­
ing funds from the State of Missouri. When fully funded, these loans (reserve accounts) will be funded 
in an amount equal to 70% of the outstanding principal amount of such bonds. The reserve accounts are 
held in trust. As the principal amount of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve account 
will be reduced such that the reserve account will equal 70% of the remaining principal balance of such 
bonds. 

The City is in compliance with significant requirements regarding deposits and debt service payments. 

NOTE E - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

Lines of Credit 

During fiscal 2006, the City obtained two lines of credit to finance acquisition of residential properties 
within the Triangle redevelopment area. The activity is a follows: 

Line of credit 
Line of credit 

Total 

Origination 
Date 

11/17/2005 
06/04/2006 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2006 
Maturity Interest 

Date Rate Credit Line 

8/31 /2006 
8/31 /2006 

5.49% 
6.32 

$6,000,000 
5,000,000 

Balance 

$5,762,585 
3,402,982 

$9,165,567 

On September 1, 2006, the lines of credit were paid off by an $11 ,000,000 line of credit maturing De­
cember 31, 2006 with an interest rate of 6.3 8%. This line of credit will be paid off when the City resells 
the land. 

Changes in short-term debt were as follows: 
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NOTE E - SHORT-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

For The Year Ended August 31, 2006 
Balance 

August 31 
Balance 

August 31 
2005 Additions Reductions 2006 

Lines of credit 9,165.567 $9,165,567 

NOTE F - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (City of Arnold, Missouri Police 
Pension Plan) which covers all members of the organized police force and participates in the state-wide 
Missouri Local Government Retirement System, an agent multiple-employer, defined benefit pension 
plan which covers all of the City's full-time employees except for members of the police force. 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan 

Plan Description and Provisions 

The Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan that covers all of the City's 
full-time police employees. The Plan was created and is governed by City ordinance. 
The payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the year ended August 31 , 2006, 
which is the date of the latest actuarial valuation available, was $2,080,320 and the City's 
total payroll was $5,343,361. 

The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report. The financial information 
is included as a Trust Fund in the City's basic financial statements. Information about the 
Plan is provided in a summary plan description. 

The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are 
due. The City's contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to pro­
vide the contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. 

Membership in the Plan is comprised of the following: 

Group 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Vested terminated employees and active employees 

August 31 
2006 

1 
50 
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NOTE F - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Employees attaining the age of 55 who have completed five or more years of service are 
entitled to benefits based upon average earnings and years of service. The Plan also pro­
vides early retirement, death, and disability. 

City ordinance requires each member to contribute 8½% of gross salary. The ordinance 
requires the City to contribute the actuarially computed amounts, which together with 
employee contributions and investment income, will cover the costs of the Plan. The ag­
gregate actuarial cost method does not identify and separately amortize unfunded actuar­
ial liabilities. 

Funding Status and Progress 

Valuation For The 
Actuarial Years 

Ended August 31 

2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

Pension Plan 
Actuarial 
Value Of 

Assets 

$4,912,204 
5,493,770 
4,762,934 
4,530,291 
4,174,590 
3,932,302 

Schedule Of Employer Contributions 
Annual 

For The Years Required Actual 
Ended August 31 Contribution Contribution 

2006 $393 ,674 $329,595 
2005 264,795 223 ,088 
2004 220,217 176,103 
2003 216,477 205,471 
2002 194,114 333,911 
2001 248,759 349,958 

Covered 
Pavroll 

$2,080,320 
1,774,321 
1,834,589 
1,720,460 
1,712,714 
1,692,864 

Percentage 
Contributed 

83.7% 
84.2 
80.0 
94.9 

172.0 
140.7 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as 
part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional infonnation as of the lat­
est actuarial valuation follows: 
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NOTE F - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Aggregate actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return 
Pre-retirement 
Post-retirement 
Projected salary increases 
Inflation rate 

Annual Pension Cost 

Frozen entry age 
Using assumed rate of 8% over 2 to 18 years 

Closed 
At contract value and market value 

8% 
8% 

5.4% 
4.5% 
NIA 

Current year annual pension costs for the Plan are shown in the trend information. An­
nual required contributions were made by the Plan. 

Trend Information 

The historical trend information about the Plan is presented herewith to help users assess 
the Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating 
assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparison with other Public Employee Re­
tirement Systems (PERS). The information provided is the latest information available. 

Valuation For The 
Actuarial Years 

Ended August 31 

2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

Pension Plan 
Annual 
Pension 

Cost 

$381,178 
250,135 
203,376 
200,068 
189,276 
251,512 

Percentage 
Contributed 

83.7% 
84.2 
80.0 
94.9 

172.0 
140.7 
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NOTE F - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold, Missouri Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Net Pension 
Asset Interest 

Valuation For The ( 0 bligation) Net Pension Annual 
Actuarial Years Beginning Asset Required 

Ended August 31 Of Year (Obligation) Contribution 

2006 $156,197 $12,496 $393,674 
2005 183,244 14,660 264,795 
2004 210,517 16,841 220,217 
2003 205,114 16,409 216,477 
2002 60,479 4,838 194,114 
2001 (37,967) (2,753) 248,759 

Net Pension 
Valuation For The Asset 

Actuarial Years Actual (Obligation) 
Ended August 31 Contribution End Of Year 

2006 $329,595 $104,614 
2005 223,088 156,197 
2004 176,103 183,244 
2003 205,471 210,5 17 
2002 333,911 205,114 
2001 349,958 60,479 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) 

Plan Description 

The City participates in LAGERS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retire­
ment system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local gov­
ernment entities in Missouri. LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan which provides 
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. LAGERS 
was created and is governed by statute, Section RSMo 70.600 - 70.755. As such, it is 
LAGERS' responsibility to administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of 
the General Assembly. The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 
401 (a) and it is tax exempt. 

LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to 
LAGERS, P.O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, MO 65102 orby calling 1-800-447-4334. 
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NOTE F - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) (Continued) 

Funding Policy 

The City's full-time employees do not contribute to the pension plan. The City is re­
quired by state statute to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 
18.2% (general) of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan mem­
bers are determined by the governing body of the City. The contribution provisions of 
the City are established by state statute. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For 2006, the City' s annual pension cost of $404,407 was equal to the required and actual 
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the February 28/29, 
2004 and/or 2005 annual actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. 

The actuarial assumptions included a) a rate of return on the investment of present and 
future assets of 7 .5% per year, compounded annually; b) projected salary increases of 4% 
per year, compounded annually, attributable to inflation; c) additional projected salary in­
creases ranging from 0% to 6% per year, depending on age, attributable to senior­
ity/merit; d) pre-retirement mortality based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table set 
back 0 years for men and 0 years for women; and e) post-retirement mortality based on 
the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality table projected to 2000 set back 1 year for men and 7 
years for women. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that 
smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five­
year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level per­
centage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The amortization period at February 28, 
2006 was 18 years. 

In December 2004, the City changed its benefit factor from 1.5% to 2%. 

Three-year trend information follows: 

For The Years 
Ended June 30 

2006 
2005 
2004 

Annual Pension 
Cost {APC) 

$404,407 
311 ,658 
244,760 

Schedule of funding progress follows: 

Percentage Of 
APC Contributed 

100% 
100 
100 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE F - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) (Continued) 

For The Entry Age 
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial 

Years Ended Value Accrued Unfunded 
February 28/29 Of Assets Liability (AAL) AAL 

2006 $5,461 ,396 $6,931 ,372 $1,469,976 
2005 4,646,329 6,716,857 2,070,528 
2004 4,290,230 4,940,200 649,970 

For The Unfunded AAL 
Valuation Annual As A Percentage 

Years Ended Funded Covered Of Covered 
February 28/29 Ratio Payroll Payroll 

2006 79% $2,224,604 66% 
2005 69 2,178,352 95 
2004 87 2,077,301 31 

Note: The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include the assets and pre­
sent value of benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve 
Fund. The actuarial assumptions were changed in conjunction with the February 28, 
2006 annual actuarial valuations. For a complete description of the actuarial assumptions 
used in the annual valuations, please contact the LAGERS' office in Jefferson City. 

NOTE G - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES 

Individual interfund assets and liabilities are as follows: 

Due From/To Other Funds: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Police Pension Trust Fund 
Sewer Fund 

Payable Fund 

Sewer Fund 
Recreation Center Fund 
Storm Water Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 

August 31 
2006 

$ 269,904 
274,391 

31 ,905 
61 ,782 

498,609 

$1,136,591 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------

NOTE G - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Generally these interfund balances are due to timing differences. All interfund balances are expected to 
be repaid during the fiscal year ending August 31, 2007. 

NOTE H - PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are levied. Taxes levied and un­
collected are carried as an asset of the General Fund. An allowance has been established for the esti­
mated uncollectible property taxes. 

The City's property tax calendar is as follows: 

a. Property is assessed by the County on January 1 each year. 
b. The tax levy ordinance is adopted and filed with the county clerk on or before September 1. 
c. Property taxes are due to be collected on or before December 31. 
d. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. 

NOTE I-INSURANCE 

The City is a member of the Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association (MIRMA), a 
state-wide governmental self-insurance pool which provides property, liability, and workers ' compensa­
tion coverages to its participating members in a single comprehensive multiline package. The various 
lines of coverage are not available individually and the membership is limited to municipalities and mu­
nicipally owned utilities. The City's policy covers all real and personal property owned by the City ex­
cept sewer lines. The policy is for replacement cost and expires June 30, 2007. 

MIRMA is funded by annual member assessments calculated at a rate per $100 of annual payroll which 
applies to all lines of coverage on a composite basis. These funds are used to pay losses within specific 
risk retention limits shared equally by all members; purchase excess insurance which provides a transfer 
of catastrophic risk to private insurance carriers; purchase services such as claims administration, loss 
prevention, and data processing; and pay administrative expenses. Should actual insurance losses ex­
ceed MIRMA's estimates, the City could be required to contribute additional funds. Management be­
lieves the risk of additional loss is minimal and any additional contributions that may be required would 
not materially impact the overall operations of the City. The City paid an assessment totaling $573,216 
for MIRMA's fiscal years ended June 30, 2006. Settled claims resulting in these risks have not ex­
ceeded coverage in any of the past three years. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISso·uru 
__________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE J - INTERFUND ADMINISTRATION FEE 

During the year, the Sewer Fund, the Storm Water Fund, and the Recreation Center Fund paid $138,000, 
$6,000, and $36,000, respectively, to the General Fund for administrative costs incurred by the General 
Fund relating to the various operations of the Funds. These fees are included in miscellaneous revenue 
in the General Fund. 

NOTE K - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already col­
lected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may 
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, 
if any, to be immaterial. 

The City is subject to various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently deter­
minable, in the opinion of the City' s attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have material ad­
verse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

At August 31 , 2006, the City had commitments for sewer projects in the amount of $6,943 ,825. 

NOTE L - RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

The government-wide statement of net assets fund balances reports $139,706 ofrestricted net assets, 
which is restricted by enabling legislation. 

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In October 2006, the city council approved the purchase of a golf course for $3 ,250,000. 

NOTE N - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

The previously stated fund balance and net assets have been restated as follows: 

Fund balance/net assets, August 31 , 2005, as previously 
reported 

Restatement for receivables 

Fund Balance/Net Assets, August 31, 2005, As Restated 

General 
Fund 

$4,876,582 
(84,253) 

$4,792,329 

Governmental 
Activities 

69,059,322 
{84,253) 

68,975,06Q 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION-

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

Over 
Budgeted Amounts (Under) 

Original Final Actual Budget 
REVENUES 

Taxes 
Property $ 919,140 919,140 949,500 30,360 
Sales 6,608 ,179 6,608 ,179 5,960,311 (647,868) 
Public utility gross receipts 1,765,000 1,765,000 2,044,454 279,454 
Motor fuel 570,000 570,000 565,520 (4,480) 
Other 157,000 157,000 166,868 9,868 

Total Taxes 10,019,319 10,019,319 9,686,653 (332,666) 

Special assessments 325,000 325,000 428,599 103,599 

Licenses and permits 537,525 537,525 501 ,547 (35,978) 

Fines and court costs 970,000 970,000 1,060,849 90,849 

Intergovernmental 783,775 783 ,775 337,205 (446,570) 

Charges for services 123,900 123,900 102,954 (20,946) 

Investment income 115,000 115 ,000 161 ,805 46,805 

Miscellaneous 
Administration 186,000 186,000 180,000 (6,000) 
Other 78,700 78 ,700 222,413 143,713 

Total Miscellaneous 264,700 264,700 402,413 137,713 
Total Revenues 13,139,219 13,139,219 12,682,025 (457,194) 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

General and administrative 982,304 1,214,988 1,149,500 (65,488) 
Mayor and council 99,358 99,358 94,674 (4,684) 
Municipal court 119,443 120,671 137,327 16,656 
Administrator 217,122 257,916 202,817 (55,099) 
Treasurer 17,312 17,312 16,941 (371) 
Finance 209,167 210,395 188,352 (22,043) 
Collector of revenue 162,912 162,912 166,428 3,516 
Attorney 97,900 97,900 115,855 17,955 
Elections 6,800 6,800 5,784 (1 ,016) 
Planning commission 174,218 175,251 168,461 (6,790) 

Total General Government 2,086,536 2,363 ,503 2,246,139 (117,364) 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION -

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND (Continued) 

____________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 
Public safety 

Police 
Police board 
Dispatching 
Building commission 

Total Public Safety 

Public works 

Highways and streets 

Parks and recreation 

Health and sanitation 
Health department 
Rabies control 
Vector control 
Solid waste 

Total Health And Sanitation 

Capital outlay 

Debt service 
Total Expenditures 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Issuance of capital lease 
Sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Sources 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 1 

FUND BALANCE, AUGUST 31 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

3,841 ,684 
6,509 

471,610 
377,040 

4,696,843 

3,218 ,446 

841 ,124 

542,537 

49,872 
138,1 18 
22,744 

657,419 
868, 153 

1,636,962 

729,308 
14,619,909 

(1 ,480,690) 

620,162 
1,500 

621 ,662 

$ (859,028) 

3,872,918 
6,509 

471 ,610 
378,656 

4,729,693 

3,266,404 

1,020,827 

557,512 

49,872 
138,118 
22,744 

657,419 
868,153 

10,955 ,784 

961 ,545 
24,723,421 

(11,584,202) 

620,162 
1,500 

621 ,662 

(10,962,540) 

Actual 

3,975,434 
963 

467,251 
346,565 

4,790,213 

1,997,244 

1,046,910 

511 ,169 

43,110 
125,395 
26,077 

629,052 
823,634 

1,784,290 

879,046 
14,078,645 

(1 ,396,620) 

600,000 
23 ,626 

623,626 

(772,994) 

4,792,329 

$ 4,019,335 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

102,516 
(5 ,546) 
(4,359) 

(32,091) 
60,520 

(1 ,269,160) 

26,083 

(46,343) 

(6,762) 
(12,723) 

3,333 
(28 ,367) 
(44,519) 

(9,171 ,494) 

(82,499) 
(10,644,776) 

10,187,582 

(20,162) 
22,126 

1,964 

10,189,546 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION -

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - RECREATION CENTER 

________________ ___;FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

Sales 

Charges for services 

Investment income 

Miiscellaneous 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPJH:NDITURES 
R(~creation center 

Capital outlay 

Debt service 
Total Expenditures 

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDI­
TURES 

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 1 

FUND BALANCE, AUGUST 31 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$ 1,037,500 

1,214,500 

10,000 

2,262,000 

1,527,354 

15,000 

905,289 
2,447,643 

$ (185,643) 

1,037,500 

1,214,500 

10,000 

2,262,000 

1,539,325 

20,495 

905,289 
2,465,109 

(203 ,109) 

Actual 

1,066,625 

834,055 

80,896 

17,776 
1,999,352 

1,384,064 

18,521 

907,693 
2,310,278 

(310,926) 

1,700,632 

$ 1,389,706 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

29,125 

(380,445) 

70,896 

17,776 
(262,648) 

(155,261) 

(1 ,974) 

2,404 
(154,831) 

(107,81 7) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION -

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

_________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006 

Budgetary Data 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial state­
ments: 

a. On or before July 8, all departments submit requests for appropriations to the City's budget com­
mittee so that a budget may be prepared. 

b. During August, the operating budget is presented to the City Council for review. The operating 
budget includes proposed expenditures for the General, Recreation Center, and Enterprise Funds 
and the means of financing them. 

c. Public hearing meetings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 
d. Prior to September 1, the budget is adopted by the City Council. 
e. Budgets are adopted on a basis generally consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting prin­

ciples. Expenditures modified for some year-end accruals may not legally exceed budgeted ap­
propriations at the department level. 

f. Budget amendments at the department level must be approved by the City Council. Management 
may authorize transfers of appropriations within a department. 

g. Appropriations lapse at year-end. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS 

AUGUST 31 -------- ---- --------------------- - - - - - ---

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes 
Special assessments 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 
Land held for resale 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Capital improvements sales tax receivable 
Investments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued interest 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 
Short-term debt 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for: 

Prepaid items 
Encumbrances 
Bond escrow deposit 
Debt service reserve 
Recreational center escrow deposit 

Unreserved: 
Designated for sewer subdistrict projects 
Designated for street projects 
Designated for road reconstruction 
Designated for recreational center 
Designated for drug forfeitures 
Designated for Greenway beautification 
Designated for economic development 
Designated for pride in our City 
Designated for technology acquisitions 
Designated for tourism 
Designated for trash reimbursement 
Un designated 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities And Fund Balances 

2006 2005 

$ 4,422,967 3,76 1,516 
317,260 

1,704,638 2,285,699 
1,808,032 1,880,342 

266,911 500,760 
632,691 880,908 
576,200 54,456 
481,578 322,655 

9,165,567 

232,871 3,690,005 
461 ,322 657,781 

1,249,776 1,250,000 

$ 21 ,002,553 15,601,382 

$ 2,387,782 5,572,775 
90,783 57,341 

212,914 
834,782 459,772 

2,901,684 3,018,533 
9,165,567 

15,593,512 9,108,421 

481 ,578 322,655 
1,126,868 579,846 

126,000 
232,816 

1,250,000 1,250,000 

1,050,149 1,211,095 
112,183 462,176 
550,000 550,000 

163,309 
40,152 
60,000 40,000 
78,581 44,447 

9,066 
1,484 

126,415 83,864 
4,224 

524,049 1,421 ,045 
5,409,041 6,492,961 

$ 21 ,002,553 15,601 ,382 

Page 51 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
___________________ FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and court costs 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 
Health and sanitation 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Issuance of capital lease 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCES 

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 1 

FUND BALANCES, AUGUST 31 

2006 

$ 10,753,278 
428,599 
501 ,547 

1,060,849 
337,205 
937,009 
242,701 
420,189 

14,681 ,377 

2,246,139 
4,790,213 
1,997,244 
1,046,910 
1,895,233 

823 ,634 
1,802,811 

858,743 
927,996 

16,388,923 

(1 ,707,546) 

600,000 
23 ,626 

623 ,626 

(1,083 ,920) 

6,492,961 

$ 5,409,041 

2005 

10,439,176 
319,133 
554,273 
797,176 

3,389,943 
155,656 
387,852 
329,406 

16,372,615 

1,794,740 
4,446,103 
5,848,333 

850,141 
735,511 
880.,191 

12,115,857 

1,374,896 
756,741 

28,802,513 

(12,429,898) 

400,000 
314,257 

1,596,205 
(1,596,205) 

71 4,257 

(11 ,715 ,641) 

18,208,602 

6,492,961 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT 

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS ---- --- ------------- ---

August 31 
2006 2005 2004 2003 

Governmental Activities: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $61,593,458 60,861,417 44,356,451 36,551 ,411 

Restricted 1,389,706 2,059,448 2,422,228 1,902,327 

Unrestricted 5,546,208 6,054,204 17,131 ,612 22,394,361 

Total Governmental 
Activities Net Assets $68,529,372 68,975,069 63 ,910,291 60,848,099 

Business-type Activities: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $12,886,415 11 ,424,680 11 ,181 ,445 10,864,269 

Restricted 842,007 804,700 1,299,950 300,905 

Unrestricted 1,434,544 1,593 ,564 1,461 ,173 2,827,318 

Total Business-type 

Activities Net Assets $15,162,966 13,822,944 13,942,568 13,992,492 

Primary Government: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $74,479,873 72,286,097 55,537,896 47,415,680 

Restricted 2,231,713 2,864,148 3,722,178 2,203 ,232 

Unrestricted 6,980,752 7,647,768 18,592,785 25,221 ,679 

Total Primary Government 
Net Assets $83 ,692,338 82,798,013 77,852,859 74,840,591 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2003 . 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 

For The Years Ended August 31 
2006 2005 2004 2003 

EXPENSES 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 3,135,028 1,935,204 2,092,831 1,760,587 
Public safety 5,141,027 4,824,236 4,448,556 4,192,120 
Public works 2,025,478 1,049,519 837,772 1,020,872 
Highways and streets 1,405,773 2,275,559 845,437 1,191,238 
Parks and recreation 1,889,036 761,557 585,666 563,526 
Health and sanitation 826,303 883,772 985,793 986,340 
Interest on long-term debt 656,208 749,147 779,696 290,267 

Total Governmental Activities 

Expenses 15,078 ,853 12,478,994 10,575,751 10,004,950 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer system 1,869,840 1,480,804 1,526,476 1,459,541 

Storm water 37,899 

Total Business-type Activities 1,907,739 1,480,804 1,526,476 1,459,541 

Total Primary Government 

Expenses 16,986,592 13,959,798 12,102,227 11,464,491 

PROGRAM REVENUES 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 
General government 346,148 378,591 332,215 307,012 

Public safety 1,379,817 1,223,932 963,583 801,586 

Parks and recreation 920,846 108,730 177,910 93,075 

Health and sanitation 14,888 15,144 16,057 14,763 

Operating grants and contributions 1,138,664 1,004,539 1,002,252 1,071 ,808 

Capital grants and contributions 781,372 4,928,205 928,132 1,423,045 

Total Governmental Activities 
Program Revenues 4,581,735 7,659,141 3,420,149 3,711,289 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services: 

Sewer system 2,492,669 1,153,188 1,207,243 1,147,048 

Storm water 61,267 

Total Business-type Activities 

Program Revenues 2,553 ,936 1,153,188 1,207,243 1,147,048 

Total Primary Government 
Program Revenues 7,135,671 8,812,329 4,627,392 4,858,337 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (Continued) 

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 

For The Years Ended August 31 
2006 2005 2004 2003 

NET REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Governmental activities (10,497,118) (4,819,853) (7,155,602) (6,293,661) 

Business-type activities 646,197 (327,616) (319,233) (312,493) 

Total Primary Government Net 

Expenses (9,850,921) (5,147,469) (7,474,835) (6,606,154) 

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Governmental activities: 
Taxes: 

Property 949,500 863,007 838,929 818,986 

Sales 6,771,832 6,745,540 7,368,939 6,040,919 

Gross receipts 2,044,454 1,837,302 1,781 ,808 1,729,838 

Miscellaneous 27,475 27,638 25,835 26,398 

Investment income 242,701 387,852 276,247 172,335 

Gain on sale of assets 143,126 18,312 

Miscellaneous 221,895 110,114 118,141 188,815 

Transfers (349,562) (105 ,134) (192,105) (141 ,868) 

Total Governmental Activities 
General Revenues And Other 

Changes In Net Assets 10,051,421 9,884,631 10,217,794 8,835,423 

Business-type activities: 
Investment income 344,263 102,858 77,204 82,407 

Transfers 349,562 105,134 192,105 141,868 

Total Business-type Activities 
General Revenues And Other 

Changes In Net Assets 693,825 207,992 269,309 224,275 

Total Primary Government 
General Revenues And Other 

Changes In Net Assets 10,745,246 10,092,623 10,487,103 9,059,698 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Governmental activities (445,697) 5,064,778 3,062,192 2,541,762 
Business-type activities 1,340,022 (119,624) (49,924) (88 ,218) 

Total Primary Government $ 894,325 4,945,154 3,012,268 2,453,544 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2003. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

______________________ .LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 

General Fund: 
Reserved 
Unreserved 

Total General Fund 

All other governmental funds: 
Reserved 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special Revenue Fund 

Total All Other Govern-
mental Funds 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2003. 

2006 

$ 1,608,446 
2,410,889 

$ 4,019,335 

$ 1,250,000 

139,706 

$ 1,389,706 

August 31 
2005 2004 

1,261,317 
3,531 ,012 

4,792,329 

1,250,000 

450,632 

1,700,632 

13,331 ,864 
4,876,73 8 

18,208,602 

2003 

4,875,576 
17,892,272 

22,767,848 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 

For The Years Ended August 31 
2006 2005 2004 2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 10,753,278 10,439,176 10,969,016 9,542,169 

Special assessments 428,599 319,133 440,386 475 ,833 

Licenses and permits 501 ,547 554,273 515 ,179 444,745 

Fines and court costs 1,060,849 797,176 631 ,699 501 ,000 

Intergovernmental 337,205 3,389,943 711 ,340 1,107,081 

Charges for services 937,009 203 ,181 156,760 119,825 

Investment income 242,701 387,852 276,247 172,335 

Miscellaneous 420,189 281,881 310,048 339,681 

Total Revenues 14,681,377 16,372,615 14,010,675 12,702,669 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 2,246,139 1,794,740 1,976,501 1,910,074 
Public safety 4,790,213 4,446,103 4,045 ,557 3,915,183 
Public works 1,997,244 5,848,333 2,770,280 2,705 ,462 
Highways and streets 1,046,910 850,141 787,401 1,143 ,693 
Parks and recreation 1,895,233 735,511 666,321 549,509 
Health and sanitation 823 ,634 880,191 975,528 983,565 
Capital outlay 1,802,811 12,115,857 5,449,754 2,338,215 
Debt service: 

Principal 858,743 1,374,896 1,111 ,207 840,243 
Interest 927,996 756,741 787,372 264,736 
Bond issue costs 391 ,364 

Total Expenditures 16,388,923 28,802,513 18,569,921 15,042,044 

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1 ,707,546) (12,429,898) (4 ,559,246) (2,339,375) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 1,596,205 
Transfers out (1 ,596,205) 
Issuance of capital lease 600,000 400,000 
Sale of capital assets 23 ,626 314,257 
Issuance of certificates of participation 16,380,000 
Premium certificates of participation 496,132 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 623 ,626 714,257 16,876,132 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES $ (1 ,083 ,920) (11 ,715 ,641) (4,559,246) 14,536,757 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 12.2 % 12.8 14.5 11.8 

Source: Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

______________________ LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 

Program Revenues 
2006 2005 2004 2003 

Function/Program 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 442,738 695,161 496,567 839,186 
Public safety 1,455,527 1,262,782 1,058,680 1,118,463 
Public works 475,087 640,969 265,539 207,638 
Highways and streets 1,272,649 4,936,355 1,405,396 1,415,564 
Parks and recreation 920,846 108,730 177,910 115,675 
Health and sanitation 14,888 15,144 16,057 14,763 

Total Governmental Activities 4,581 ,735 7,659,141 3,420,149 3,711 ,289 

Business-type activities: 

Sewer system 2,492,669 1,153 ,188 1,207,243 1,147,048 

Storm water 61 ,267 
Total Business-type Activities 2,553 ,936 1,153,188 1,207,243 1,147,048 

Total Primary Government $ 7,135,671 8,812,329 4,627,392 4,858,337 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2003 . 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Public Utility 
Fiscal Property Sales Gross Receipts Motor Other 
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Fuel Taxes Taxes Total 

2006 $949,500 $7,026,936 $ 2,044,454 $565,520 $166,868 $ 10,753,278 
2005 863 ,007 6,995,014 1,837,302 583,207 160,646 10,439,176 
2004 838,929 7,618,703 1,781 ,808 578,703 150,873 10,969,016 
2003 818,986 6,286,576 1,729,837 559,479 147,291 9,542,169 
2002 784,409 6,159,926 1,724,863 545,538 120,049 9,334,785 
2001 710,966 5,982,216 1,867,444 535,295 119,158 9,215,079 
2000 670,891 4,373,059 1,513,163 558,156 115,093 7,230,362 
1999 622,119 4,008,135 1,516,599 527,420 112,334 6,786,607 
1998 606,021 4,648,901 1,474,412 529,326 108,056 7,366,716 
1997 567,527 3,459,780 1,435,129 523 ,123 101 ,311 6,086,870 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Ratio Of 
Total Assessed 

Railroads Total Value To Total 
Fiscal Calendar Real And Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Year Year Property Utilities Value Actual Value Actual Value 

2006 2005 $211,786,300 $5,511,854 $217,298,154 $ 943,764,731 23.0 

2005 2004 188,897,200 5,223,038 194,120,238 835,396,989 23.2 

2004 2003 184,774,900 5,254,233 190,029,133 814,846,655 23 .3 

2003 2002 179,072,600 5,166,281 184,238,881 793,026,020 23.2 

2002 2001 176,057,800 5,348,584 181 ,406,384 781,100,986 23.2 

2001 2000 154,909,400 5,075,954 159,985,354 695 ,836,539 23.0 

2000 1999 145,829,500 5,100,237 150,929,737 666,276,086 22.7 

1999 1998 132,768,200 5,220,979 137,989,179 615,655,916 22.4 

1998 1997 128,157,200 6,731,153 134,888,353 601,446,043 22.4 

1997 1996 115,317,000 5,184,266 120,501,266 532,490,250 22.6 

(1) Source: Jefferson County Assessor 

Property has an assessed value to estimated actual value as follows: commercial real estate 32%, 
residential real estate 19%, agricultural real estate 12%, and personal property 33-1/3%. 

The City does not collect tax on personal property and such data is, therefore, not included. 

Data for real property owned by exempt organizations is not included as it is not available. 

% 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS (1) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

City of Arnold 0.440 0.440 0.450 0.450 0.450 0.450 0.460 0.470 0.470 0.490 

Overlapping Governments: 
State of Missouri 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 
Jefferson County 0.510 0.500 0.520 0.520 0.500 0.500 0.480 0.490 0.740 0.490 
Consolidated School No. 6 of Jefferson County 4.460 4.460 4.600 3.530 3.510 3.500 3.580 3.610 3.610 3.780 
Rock Community Fire Protection District 0.940 0.940 0.970 0.960 0.940 0.920 0.850 0.800 0.700 0.730 
Rock Township Ambulance District 0.130 0.150 0.230 0.220 0.220 0.220 0.230 0.230 0.230 0.240 
The Junior College District of Jefferson County 0.350 0.350 0.350 0.350 0.350 0.230 0.230 0.230 0.230 0.230 
The Jefferson County Library District 0.180 0.180 0.190 0.190 0.190 0.190 0.190 0.190 0.190 0.200 
Surtax-Commercial Only 0.240 0.240 0.240 0.240 

(1) Source: Jefferson County Assessor (rates stated per $100 assessed valuation) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS (1) 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

2006 1997 
Percentage Of Percentage Of 

Total City Total City 
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Valuation Rank Value Valuation Rank Value 

AmerenUE $ 4,569,211 1 2.10 % $ % 
Southwester Bell Telephone 3,990,064 2 1.84 

Water Tower LLC 3,847,000 3 1.77 
Metal Container Corporation 3,618,300 4 1.67 

Greater Missouri Builders 2,851,300 5 1.31 

Schnucks 2,732,900 6 1.26 
Suellentrop Family Partnership LP 2,697,400 7 1.24 

Home Depot 2,542,600 8 1.17 

Target 2,496,000 9 1.15 

Convergy's Corporation 2,103,300 10 0.97 

$ 31,448,075 14.47 % $ % 

(1) Source: Jefferson County Assessor 

Note: The information for 1997 was not obtainable. These records are not readily accessible from Jefferson County. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (1) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Outstanding 
Total Delinquent 

Tax Current Percent Delinquent Total Collections Outstanding Taxes As 
Fiscal Levy Net Tax Tax Collected Tax Tax As Percent Delinquent Percent 
Year Year Levy (2) Collections As Current Collections Collections Of Levy Taxes Of Levy 

2006 2005 $944,339 $ 897,486 95.0 % $ 8,619 $ 906,105 96.0 % $ 57,677 6.11 % 
2005 2004 859,110 802,501 93.4 15,718 818,219 95.2 23,218 2.70 
2004 2003 834,414 809,603 97.0 14,358 823,961 98.7 24,812 2.97 
2003 2002 814,105 759,996 93.4 59,237 819,233 100.6 36,228 4.45 
2002 2001 780,778 730,130 93.5 51,280 781 ,410 100.1 16,345 2.09 
2001 2000 708,787 661,782 93.4 46,057 707,839 99.9 16,978 2.40 
2000 1999 670,891 517,177 77.1 155,207 672,384 100.2 13,849 2.06 
1999 1998 622,429 586,577 94.2 35,659 622,236 100.0 18,762 3.01 

1998 1997 603,604 527,829 87.4 82,700 610,529 101.1 16,443 2.72 
1997 1996 565,117 526,297 93.1 40,723 567,020 100.3 17,826 3.15 

(1) Source: Jefferson County Collector's Office 

(2) Originally adjusted for strike offs and additions by the Board of Equalization after 1978 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
Capital Total Percentage 

Fiscal Lease Certificates Of Leasehold Revenue Notes Primary Of Personal Per 
Year Obligations Participation Revenue Bonds Bonds Payable Government Income (1) Capita 

2006 $ 749,910 $ $15,370,000 $ 10,120,833 $ 842,007 $27,082,750 % $ 1,327 
2005 328,654 440,000 15,610,000 1,285,775 804,700 18,469,129 905 
2004 48,550 650,000 16,655,000 1,410,275 875,700 19,639,525 5.02 975 
2003 239,757 855,000 17,370,000 1,676,775 942,100 21,083,632 5.41 1,052 
2002 1,055,000 1,870,000 1,926,025 1,004,600 5,855,625 1.51 294 
2001 1,260,000 2,335,000 2,154,525 1,065,700 6,815,225 1.76 342 
2000 9,828 1,315,000 2,765,000 2,390,500 1,009,356 7,489,684 1.93 375 
1999 32,379 1,450,000 3,160,000 2,541,250 581,943 7,765,572 387 
1998 53,542 1,575,000 3,535,000 2,728,750 639,343 8,531,635 425 
1997 75,001 1,695,000 2,938,000 639,343 5,347,344 267 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(1) See Demographics and Economic Statistics Table 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

_______________________ AUGUST 31, 2006 

Name Of Governmental Unit 

The Junior College District of Jefferson County 
Consolidated School District No. 6 of 

Jefferson County 

City direct debt 

Total Direct And Overlapping Debt 

Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 

30,000,000 
30,000,000 

16,11 9,910 

$ 46,119,910 

Estimated 
Estimated Share Of 
Percentage Overlapping 
Applicable Debt 

12.24 % $ 

43.58 13,074,000 
13,074,000 

100.00 % 16,119,910 

$ 29,193,910 

Source: Information was obtained by contacting the Taxing Jurisdiction and the Jefferson County 
Collector's Office. The percentage applicable to the City is based on the jurisdiction's assessed value 
within the boundaries of the City. 
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Debt limit 

Net debt appli-
cable to limit 

Legal Debt 
Margin 

Total Net Debt 
Applicable To 
The Limit As 
Percentage Of 
Debt Limit 

2006 

$28,247,720 

$ 28,247,720 

2005 2004 2003 

25,534,112 25,363 ,969 25 ,018,687 

25,534,112 25,363,969 25,018,687 

% 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Years 
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

24,752,032 22,021,812 20,513,362 19,070,814 18,641 ,631 16,802,102 

24,752,032 22,021,812 20,513,362 19,070,814 18,641 ,631 16,802,102 

Note: Bonded indebtedness is limited by Sections 95.111 and 95 .120 of the Missouri Revised Statutes (I 986) to 10% of the assessed value of taxable tangible property. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Per 
Fiscal Population Median Personal Capita School Unemployment 
Year (1) Age (2) Income (1) Income (2) Enrollment Rate (3) 

2006 20,413 36.7 NIA NIA 11 ,459 4.8 % 
2005 20,413 36.7 NIA NIA 11 ,554 4.3 
2004 20,146 34.9 $ 391 ,537,510 $ 19,435 11 ,019 3.1 
2003 20,049 34.9 389,652,315 19,435 11 ,019 3.1 
2002 19,920 34.9 387,145,200 19,435 11 ,019 3.1 
2001 19,956 34.9 387,844,860 19,435 11 ,019 3.1 
2000 19,970 34.9 388,116,950 19,435 11 ,019 3.1 
1999 20,053 NIA NIA NIA 9,507 5.2 
1998 20,053 NIA NIA NIA 9,507 5.2 
1997 20,053 NIA NIA NIA 9,507 5.2 

(1 ) Source: SETA - Office of Social and Economic Trend Analyis 

(2) Source: Census Bureau 

(3) Source: Missouri Department of Labor 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND FIVE YEARS AGO 

2006 2000 
Percent Percent 

Of Total City Of Total City 
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment 

Convergy's Corportation 1,100 5.47 % 700 1 3.48 % 
LMC Industries 350 2 1.74 296 4 1.47 
Wal-Mart 328 3 1.63 403 2 2.01 
Schnuck's 230 4 1.14 361 3 1.80 
Sinclair & Rush 205 5 1.02 159 7 0.79 
Metal Container Corporation 188 6 0.94 200 5 1.00 
Home Depot 150 7 0.75 120 9 0.60 
Shop & Save 127 8 0.63 180 6 0.90 
Kohl's Department Store 106 9 0.53 125 8 0.62 
Geospatial Information Agency NIA 10 NIA NIA 10 NIA 

2,784 13.85 % 2,544 12.67 % 

Source: The City Clerk's Office. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-Time E9uivalent Emelo~ees As Of August 31 
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

Function/Program 
General government: 

Legislative services I 1 1 1 1 1 
Administrative services 7 6 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 3 
Maintenance of municipal property 1 1 
Municipal court 2 1 I I 1 1 1 
Finance 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Police: 
Officers 48 47 46 44 46 47 47 45 44 40 
Adminstrative services 4 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Dispatch 7 8 8 8 7 7 7 8 8 8 

Public works: 
Administration 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Street maintenance 8 8 8 9 11 13 13 12 16 16 
Fleet 2 2 2 2 2 

Building department: 
Administration 4 4 3 3 3 3 2 1 
Inspectors 2 3 3 3 3 4 5 3 4 4 
Engineers 1 

Parks and recreation: 
Administration 3 3 2 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 
Maintenance 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 
Supervisors 2 2 

Sewer: 
Maintenance 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 5 6 6 

Health department: 
Administration 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Rabies controller 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 
Function/Program 
Police-patrol: 

Arrests 2,183 2,393 2,120 1,998 2,061 4,983 1,589 1,511 1,511 1,511 
Traffic citations 8,039 12,028 9,764 8,312 8,342 8,283 3,955 4,475 4,475 4,475 

Crime reports 15,072 15,999 15,519 14,753 13,803 14,312 14,087 14,313 NIA NIA 
Accident reports 1,009 1,095 1,020 983 1,066 1,146 1,030 889 NIA NIA 
Warrants 2,427 3,128 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA N/A NIA 

Public works: 
Road repair - tons of mix NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Linear feet of stonn pipe cleared NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Traffic control signs serviced 19 45 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Weed violations issued - HW 140 138 102 95 627 720 892 341 NIA NIA 
Acres mowed and maintained 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 
Trees and shrubs planted NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Planning and building: 

Site development/concept plans 67 43 67 57 44 28 36 39 48 42 

Rezoning applications 5 4 3 4 4 10 5 5 7 4 

Text amendments 3 5 3 9 7 6 12 
Building permits issued 622 799 736 701 646 567 640 763 713 700 
Building inspections completed NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Finance and administration: 
Merchant licenses issued 83 92 89 82 79 89 83 89 81 75 
Payroll checks issued 4,151 3,209 3,065 3,069 3,137 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Accounts payable processed 4,419 4,010 3,975 3,899 3,621 N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Requests for public records 34 8 8 5 9 NIA NIA NIA N/A NIA 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 
Function/Program 
Police: 

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Marked patrol units 29 29 29 29 16 16 16 16 16 16 

Public works: 
Miles of streets 80.7 77 77 77 76.6 76.6 76.6 52.9 52.9 52.9 
Traffic lights and signals 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 1 
Miles of sanitary sewers 98.5 96.3 96.3 96.3 96.3 95.3 95 .3 74.8 74.8 74.8 
Miles of storm sewers 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.3 7.33 7.3 7.3 7.3 
Number of pumping stations 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 6 6 6 

Parks and recreation: 

Number of parks 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 
Acres of parks 485 485 485 485 463 463 463 348 348 229 
Tennis courts 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Community centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Swimming pools 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
____________________ COMPLIANCE 

COMPLIANCE SECTION 



Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

November 29, 2006 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF ARNOLD, 
MISSOURI (the City) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2006, which collectively comprise the 
City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2006. We con­
ducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards appli­
cable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen­
eral of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting 
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our considera­
tion of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the in­
ternal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in 
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a 
relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be mate­
rial in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely 
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters 
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

D 16100 Chesterfield Parkway West, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of mate­
rial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, con­
tracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated Novem­
ber 29, 2006. 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of management, City Council, federal award­
ing agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

~~~~ °t-~? LLP 
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